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          1  PUBLIC SAFETY AND CONSUMER AFFAIRS

          2                 CHAIRPERSON VALLONE: Welcome,

          3  everyone, to this joint hearing of the Public Safety

          4  Committee and the Consumer Affairs Committee.

          5                 It's my pleasure to join with Council

          6  Member Reed and the other members of his Committee

          7  to discuss the City's anti-graffiti efforts and to

          8  consider three anti-graffiti bills.

          9                 First let me begin by introducing the

         10  Council Members present this morning. To my far left

         11  and standing for the announcement is Simcha Felder,

         12  and Helen Sears, neither of which are a member of

         13  either of these committees but are so interested in

         14  this very important issue that they've decided to

         15  come down and join us.

         16                 To my left, which is as usual,

         17  Council Member Charles Barron, and to his right the

         18  rest of us, beginning with John Liu, my co-chair

         19  Phil Reed, myself, Peter Vallone, and Oliver

         20  Koppell.

         21                 Because of a time issue, we're going

         22  to begin before anything else with a vote of the

         23  Consumer Affairs Committee on an issue that's

         24  pending before them.

         25                 Phil Reed.
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          2                 CHAIRPERSON REED: Thank you, Council

          3  Member Vallone.

          4                 I welcome everybody and I appreciate

          5  since we're having a joint hearing, we're taking

          6  this opportunity to vote on Intro. 67-A, which is

          7  better known as the predatory lending law.

          8                 Since March, this Committee has

          9  devoted considerable time and resources to Intro.

         10  67-A. The Council's Anti-predatory Lending Bill.

         11                 As the Committee members well know,

         12  we've held four public hearings and countless

         13  meetings with interested parties. Ultimately we've

         14  created a document that protects the City's

         15  interests by prohibiting business dealings with

         16  predatory lenders while still allowing the

         17  legitimate subprime market to flourish.

         18                 Our Committee approved the current

         19  version of the bill unanimously on September 4, and

         20  the full Council passed it overwhelmingly on

         21  September 25th. However, on October 23rd, 2002, the

         22  Mayor sent a message, M 331, to the City Council

         23  vetoing Intro 67-A.

         24                 M 331 was presented to the City

         25  Council at the Stated Meeting on November 7th, 2002.
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          2  Today the Committee will vote on whether to override

          3  the Mayor's veto of Intro. 67-A.

          4                 For procedural clarity today, we will

          5  be voting once on two coupled items. First item is a

          6  motion to receive and file M 331, which is done for

          7  the purpose of completing the record. A yes vote to

          8  this item will only mean that M 331 is accepted into

          9  the official record of the Council proceeding, and

         10  does not mean agreement with its contents.

         11                 The second item is following

         12  substantive motion. Shall Intro. 667-A pass, the

         13  objection of the Mayor notwithstanding.

         14                 As Chair I would recommend voting yes

         15  on both coupled items.

         16                 We will now begin and leave the vote,

         17  and we will leave it open for any other Committee

         18  members who will join us later. That way we will be

         19  able to take up other matters that are before us

         20  today.

         21                 Would the representatives from the

         22  Legislative Documents Office please open the vote?

         23                 COUNCIL CLERK: Reed.

         24                 CHAIRPERSON REED: Aye.

         25                 COUNCIL CLERK: Barron.
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          2                 COUNCIL MEMBER BARRON: Aye on both.

          3  And Mr. Chairman, I ask to be excused because I have

          4  to Chair the Higher Education hearing next door.

          5                 CHAIRPERSON VALLONE: Yes.

          6                 COUNCIL CLERK: Koppell.

          7                 COUNCIL MEMBER KOPPELL: Mr. Chairman,

          8  before I vote, may I explain my vote?

          9                 CHAIRPERSON VALLONE: Yes.

         10                 COUNCIL MEMBER KOPPELL: Thank you,

         11  Mr. Chairman.

         12                 I would like to comment that I think

         13  this legislation is appropriate and want to

         14  compliment you for carrying it through.

         15                 I also want to say that it is my

         16  understanding that the State enacted similar, but

         17  not identical prohibitions, and I believe personally

         18  that one of the reasons that the state did that was

         19  because this bill was pending and they felt that if

         20  they didn't respond, this bill would go into law in

         21  any event, and better to have that regulation there

         22  than only this bill.

         23                 Nonetheless, because this bill has

         24  some provisions that expand on the State

         25  prohibition, and because I think it's appropriate
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          2  for the City Council to prohibit the City from doing

          3  business with anyone who would engage in these

          4  practices, whether legally or illegally, I am

          5  pleased to support the override and to vote aye on

          6  both.

          7                 And once again, to thank you and all

          8  associated for bringing this before us. I'm very

          9  pleased because this is a major problem and I've

         10  been well acquainted with, and hopefully this bill,

         11  as well as the State legislation, which we can take

         12  some credit for, I believe, will make a real

         13  difference.

         14                 CHAIRPERSON VALLONE: Thank you.

         15                 COUNCIL CLERK: By a vote of four in

         16  the affirmative, zero in the negative and no

         17  abstentions, M 331 is filed and Intro. 67-A is

         18  readopted.

         19                 Council members, please sign the

         20  Committee report, and the vote will remain open.

         21                 CHAIRPERSON REED: Thank you, Chairman

         22  Vallone.

         23                 CHAIRPERSON VALLONE: Thank you,

         24  Chairman Reed.

         25                 Back to the issue at hand. As many of
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          2  you know, the Council recently released a report

          3  discussing the availability of spray paint in

          4  indelible markers to minors and the proper display

          5  of these items by hardware and art supply store

          6  merchants.

          7                 Among its findings a report found

          8  that of the 70 hardware stores, 35, which is 50

          9  percent, sold spray paint to minors. Of the 35

         10  stores that sold spray paint to minors, 27 did not

         11  inquire into a person's age or ask for

         12  identification.

         13                 These findings prompted the

         14  introduction of Intros 277 and 286 which increase

         15  the penalties for the sale of aerosol spray paint

         16  cans and broad-tipped indelible markers, such as the

         17  ones you see before me here.

         18                 Under current law, any person who

         19  makes graffiti or sells spray paints or an indelible

         20  marker to a person under 18 is guilty of a class B

         21  misdemeanor, with a potential fine of not more than

         22  $500 or imprisonment of not more than three months.

         23                 Intro. 286 increases the penalty for

         24  a second time offender by increasing the penalty to

         25  a Class A misdemeanor, with a fine of not more than
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          2  $1,000 and imprisonment of no more than one year or

          3  both, for persons previously convicted of graffiti

          4  or selling graffiti instruments to minors.

          5                 In addition, the current civil

          6  penalty of not more than $500 is increased to $1,000

          7  for repeat offenders.

          8                 Intro. 277, which Council Member Reed

          9  will explain in more detail, requires stores that

         10  sell these items to prominently display the

         11  restrictions on the sale with signage.

         12                 In addition, we're taking up Intro.

         13  243 today, co-sponsored by or introduced by Council

         14  Member Brewer, which adds etching acids to the list

         15  of items that cannot be filled for people under 18

         16  years old.

         17                 The use of etching acid, which I do

         18  have a can here before me, a container, which was

         19  just purchased at a store on canal street, by one of

         20  our public safety staff, who was not proofed, even

         21  though she does look under 18. But she does not have

         22  to be proofed right now, and hopefully when we pass

         23  this law, kids will not be able to have access to

         24  this, and in speaking to one of the people who will

         25  be testifying in the Police Department earlier, who
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          2  went strangely enough to the same store to purchase

          3  their props, he was told that that store was already

          4  having problems with the etching acids being stolen

          5  by kids to use with this type of graffiti, and, so,

          6  it already is locked up, and that's a good thing to

          7  know, but we're going to now make sure that all

          8  stores are just as responsible as that one.

          9                 As I said, the etching acid has

         10  increased and the Police Department will have an

         11  expert here to explain the use of the etching acid.

         12                 In addition to these three important

         13  pieces of legislation, the testimony from the

         14  Administration regarding the ongoing anti-graffiti

         15  efforts.

         16                 The City has made great strides in

         17  recent years to prevent the proliferation of

         18  graffiti, and the Administration will update us on

         19  those efforts today, particularly the Mayor's recent

         20  Multi-agency Anti-graffiti Initiative.

         21                 The staff of both Committees has had

         22  discussions with the Administration regarding these

         23  bills and will make certain minor changes, including

         24  changing the effective date to 120 days after

         25  enactment.
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          2                 The purpose of today's hearing is to

          3  solicit any concerns regarding these bills so we can

          4  refine them and make them part of a complete

          5  anti-graffiti effort.

          6                 So, in sum, we're doing three things

          7  today. We're using our oversight capacity to focus

          8  attention on this problem and find out what the City

          9  is doing to combat it. We're increasing and

         10  strengthening the laws and the fines and the

         11  punishment for people engaged in this practice; and,

         12  number three, we're adding a new law. We're going to

         13  make the sale of etching acid to minors a crime.

         14                 I will now turn it over to my

         15  co-chair Council Member Reed, for his opening

         16  statement.

         17                 COUNCIL MEMBER KOPPELL: Messrs.

         18  Chairmen, I apologize but I must attend a funeral,

         19  I'm going to have to leave. But I appreciate the

         20  hearing and will certainly review the testimony.

         21                 CHAIRPERSON VALLONE: We're sorry to

         22  hear that. Thank you.

         23                 CHAIRPERSON REED: I think you have

         24  basically summed up the issues that we're here to

         25  address today, and Intro. 277 is a very
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          2  straightforward bill with three basic elements. It

          3  requires that signs be posted to each counter over

          4  which spray paint cans or markers are sold.

          5                 Secondly, it states the penalties for

          6  violating this requirement are $250 to $500 for the

          7  first violation, and $500 to $1,000 for each

          8  additional violation.

          9                 And, third, it empowers the

         10  Commissioner of the Department of Consumer Affairs

         11  to make any rules and regulations necessary to carry

         12  out the legislation.

         13                 We think this bill is simple, but

         14  necessary staff in the City's ongoing battle against

         15  graffiti.

         16                 We believe that Intro. 277 will keep

         17  merchants and consumers better informed, decrease

         18  the illegal sale, and use of markers and spray paint

         19  and ultimately limit the graffiti we see in our

         20  communities.

         21                 Thank you.

         22                 CHAIRPERSON VALLONE: Thank you, Mr.

         23  Reed.

         24                 The first panel will consist of

         25  Commissioner Greenspun of the Community Assistance
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          2  Unit; Chief Michael Scagnelli, the Chief of

          3  Transportation, the NYPD; and Pauline Toole, from

          4  the Consumer Affairs Department.

          5                 This panel will discuss the bills

          6  that are being introduced.  When this panel is done,

          7  the Police Department will remain and be joined by

          8  other experts regarding graffiti and we will then

          9  have an opportunity to go into the specifics of the

         10  graffiti problem, and what we can do to combat that.

         11                 So, the first panel will be

         12  discussing the bills itself, and then we'll be able

         13  to go into the larger question with some experts.

         14                 So, thank you, all of you, for

         15  joining us. You may begin in whatever order you deem

         16  appropriate. The floor is yours.

         17                 CHIEF SCAGNELLI: Good morning,

         18  Chairman Vallone, Chairman Reed, and members of the

         19  City Council. I'm Michael Scagnelli, I'm the Chief

         20  of Transportation for the New York City Police

         21  Department, and I'm pleased to be here today on

         22  behalf of Police Commissioner Raymond Kelly to

         23  discuss Police Department's ongoing efforts to

         24  combat the problem of graffiti in New York City, and

         25  to offer comments on the bills before you.
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          2                 The Police Department thanks you for

          3  addressing graffiti, by your introduction of the

          4  three bills which we believe will assist the City in

          5  its mission to reduce graffiti significantly from

          6  our public spaces, as well as to deter the vandals

          7  who commit these offenses.

          8                 While we support the concepts behind

          9  all three bills, the Police Department has some

         10  specific suggestions regarding Intro. Numbers 243

         11  and 286, that we believe will help make the

         12  legislation stronger and Assistant Commissioner

         13  Toole, of the Department of Consumer Affairs, will

         14  make specific comments on Intro. No. 277.

         15                 At the outset, we believe that the

         16  three bills should be combined in one bill amending

         17  administrative code section 10-117. With respect to

         18  the specific provisions of the bills, Intro. No. 243

         19  adds etching acid to the list of items, including

         20  aerosol spray cans and broad-tipped indelible

         21  markers, whose use in sale are currently subject to

         22  administrative code prohibitions.

         23                 The Police Department believes that

         24  this is an excellent initiative now that etching

         25  acid has emerged as a tool for vandalizing property.
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          2                 While etching has valid artistic and

          3  commercial uses, just as spray paint and

          4  broad-tipped markers do, its possession to use and

          5  deface glass calls for special attention in the law.

          6                 Etching acid is a new tool graffiti

          7  vandals use in order to make a permanent mark on

          8  their targets. A permanent mark on their targets.

          9                 By its nature, etching acid

         10  permanently destroys the chemical integrity of the

         11  glass surfaces it touches and the damage it creates

         12  cannot be cleaned, repaired, or painted over in the

         13  same manner as damage caused by spray paint markers.

         14                 Not only does etching acid destroy

         15  glass, but because of its caustic nature, it

         16  presents a physical danger to those who come in

         17  contact with it.

         18                 These can include unwary members of

         19  the public who may be exposed to the chemical which

         20  remains on glass surfaces until those surfaces are

         21  cleaned, as well as the young people who unaware of

         22  its dangers use etching acid for graffiti making.

         23                 I have with me a piece of glass which

         24  I'd like to show you.

         25                 This is the etching acid. You can
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          2  brush it and then write on glass or you can do a

          3  nice stencil and go over the stencil and have

          4  whatever the stencil shows.

          5                 This was done late last night, we put

          6  the date on it. This was cleaned, and if it wasn't

          7  cleaned and if you touch it here, you will have a

          8  chemical burn on your hand. This is ruined. This is

          9  to show you how serious it is.

         10                 CHAIRPERSON VALLONE: Let me just

         11  prove your point by saying the first thing I did

         12  when I saw that was touch it to see what it felt

         13  like. Had you not cleaned it, the hearing would be

         14  delayed for a little bit.

         15                 CHIEF SCAGNELLI: Exactly. And these

         16  vandals don't clean it. They do the mischief and

         17  they leave.

         18                 We understand that you've discussed

         19  the language of this bill with the Mayor's Office in

         20  order to create a definition that will encompass all

         21  possible types of chemical agents used to vandalize

         22  property.

         23                 We have an additional suggestion that

         24  the definition be changed from, "any liquid cream

         25  paste or similar substance to any liquid cream paste
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          2  or chemical substance," so that no form of damaging

          3  chemical would be excluded from the definition, they

          4  might come up with new stuff.

          5                 With respect to Intro. No. 286, we

          6  strongly support the increase in penalties for

          7  recidivist graffiti vandals and irresponsible

          8  sellers of materials used to vandalize property.

          9                 However, we note that although the

         10  bill would provide these increased penalties for

         11  anyone violating any provision of section 10-117,

         12  including the possession of the spray paint or

         13  marker in a public facility with the intent to

         14  vandalize.

         15                 The title of the bill and its

         16  legislative findings only refer to the sale of the

         17  instrument.

         18                 We suggest that the title of the bill

         19  and the legislative findings be clarified to

         20  indicate that any second violation, any second

         21  violation of Section 10-117 would subject the

         22  offender to the increased penalties.

         23                 With respect to the effective dates

         24  of these bills, depending on whether the bills are

         25  combined with Intro. No. 277, we suggest that a
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          2  period of at least 120 days be established before

          3  the bill takes effect. This would provide an

          4  adequate period of public notice and time for the

          5  Department of Consumer Affairs to promulgate any

          6  necessary rules.

          7                 If the bills are not combined, a

          8  shorter period of time, such as 60 days, might very

          9  well be appropriate.

         10                 I have expressed the Police

         11  Department's strong support for the bills before

         12  you.

         13                 Assistant Commissioner Toole will now

         14  offer comments on behalf of the Department of

         15  Consumer Affairs. Thank you.

         16                 ASSISTANT COMMISSIONER TOOLE: Thank

         17  you, Chief.

         18                 Good morning, Chairman Reed, Chairman

         19  Vallone, and members of the Consumer Affairs and

         20  Public Safety Committees.

         21                 I'm Pauline Toole, Assistant

         22  Commissioner at the City's Department of Consumer

         23  Affairs.

         24                 I thank you for the opportunity -- is

         25  that not on? Is that better?
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          2                 Okay, good morning again. Thank you

          3  for the opportunity to speak here. I'm Pauline

          4  Toole, Assistant Commissioner for the Department of

          5  Consumer Affairs, and I'm here to testify only on

          6  the bill, Intro. 277, which requires the posting of

          7  signs describing prohibitions on the sale and use of

          8  products that could be used for graffiti.

          9                 The bill would add a new section to

         10  the Administrative Code, requiring all stores

         11  selling aerosol spray paint cans or broad-tipped

         12  indelible markers, to prominently display a sign

         13  stating the restrictions on the sale and use of such

         14  products that are contained in the designated

         15  subdivisions of Section 10-117 of the existing

         16  Administrative Code.

         17                 The bill would impose a range of

         18  penalties for violations starting with the civil

         19  penalty not less than $250 or more than $500 for the

         20  first violation, and not less than 500 or more than

         21  $1,000 for any subsequent violations.

         22                 Finally, the bill would authorize the

         23  DCA to promulgate regulations that may be needed to

         24  implement the sign posting requirement.

         25                 The sign posting requirement will be
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          2  a very useful way to publicize the prohibition on

          3  and penalties imposed for selling or using tools to

          4  deface and damage public and private property.

          5                 You will hear shortly about the

          6  damage and costs that can be inflicted with these

          7  tools. Posting warning signs describing the

          8  penalties for illegally selling or using the tools

          9  can only heighten businesses and make them aware of

         10  the issue.

         11                 The notice may make store personnel

         12  more aware of the sales ban and enlist their

         13  continuing cooperation.

         14                 The Department actually looks forward

         15  to promulgating regulations specifying the form and

         16  content of signs that state the prohibition and the

         17  restrictions.

         18                 Let me note that DCA does not license

         19  the businesses that sell these products. We will

         20  need to strategize collectively to identify

         21  effective methods, to identify the universe of

         22  affected businesses and distribute the signs to

         23  them.

         24                 The DCA supports the proposed sign

         25  posting requirement, but we recommend some
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          2  revisions. We're very happy to hear that you're

          3  willing to extend the effective date, 220 days, that

          4  would be great, it would give us time to make the

          5  rules.

          6                 We also recommend that you add

          7  etching acids to the items mentioned in the signs

          8  and that you designate the agencies that can write

          9  violations, as now is done in Section 10-117 of the

         10  administrative code.

         11                 So, thank you, again, for the

         12  opportunity to testify about this bill, we look

         13  forward to working with you on the revisions that

         14  would enhance the effectiveness of the proposal.

         15                 Thank you.

         16                 COMMISSIONER GREENSPUN: Good morning,

         17  Chairman Reed and Vallone and members of the

         18  Committee. My name is Jonathan Greenspun, and I'm

         19  Commissioner of the Mayor's Community Assistance

         20  Unit.

         21                 I appear before you today, together

         22  with my colleagues from the Bloomberg Administration

         23  to lend my voice in support of three bills under

         24  your consideration, that will add much needed teeth

         25  to the present laws, and will curb what we so often
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          2  refer to as quality of life crime in New York City.

          3                 Specifically I'm referring to

          4  graffiti, a symbol of urban blight, which can

          5  instantly and in many cases unfairly portray a

          6  community as neglected or crime-ridden.

          7                 In 1995, City Hall recognized the

          8  adverse impact of graffiti of establishing the

          9  Mayor's Anti-graffiti Task Force. Since that time,

         10  the Mayor's Community Assistance Unit has played a

         11  crucial role by ensuring inter-agency coordination

         12  and cooperation to combat graffiti Citywide.

         13                 As I appear before you today, I am

         14  proud to report that since May, the Anti-Graffiti

         15  Task Force participated in over 1,100 separate

         16  clean-up locations throughout the City of New York.

         17                 These clean-up efforts by ordinary

         18  citizens, youth groups and others often show the

         19  benevolent hearing side of a community.

         20                 Having personally participated in

         21  several of these initiatives, I witnessed firsthand

         22  the satisfaction New Yorkers get from cleaning their

         23  neighborhoods and sending a message to vandals that

         24  their crimes will not be tolerated in their

         25  backyard.
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          2                 However, I know that this Committee

          3  would join me in the hope that there would be no

          4  need for these clean-ups, and that those who engage

          5  in this pathetic brand of vandalism are prosecuted

          6  to the fullest extent of the law.

          7                 That is why the bills before this

          8  Committee are so crucial.

          9                 Together we will be sending a message

         10  that graffiti is not being ignored and our attention

         11  to this matter is as serious as it has ever been.

         12                 The figure of 1,100 clean-ups is one

         13  in which we at the CAU take great pride; however,

         14  I'm saddened to report that the figure represents a

         15  drop in the bucket compared to how many more

         16  graffiti exists that we were unable to clean.

         17                 That is why these proposed pieces of

         18  legislation are so important.

         19                 By increasing the penalties to those

         20  who sell the tools to create graffiti, this

         21  Committee would be taking the necessary steps to

         22  attack graffiti where it counts most, at its source.

         23  It is a simple fact, fewer spray paint cans, markers

         24  and etching acid in the hands of vandals will result

         25  in the decrease of graffiti.
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          2                 Moreover, I fully support Intro. 243,

          3  which would add etching acid to the already existing

          4  laws prohibiting the sale of indelible markers and

          5  spray paint.

          6                 It is important to point out to this

          7  Committee that the City's ability to clean graffiti

          8  often relies on certain variables which could at

          9  times curtail our ability to remove graffiti as

         10  quickly as we would like.

         11                 One primary example is weather.

         12                 When the temperature drops below 50

         13  degrees the paint used to cover up graffiti has

         14  difficulty sticking to the wall.

         15                 This highlights the true damaging

         16  power of etching acid, which as Chief Scagnelli

         17  demonstrated to you this morning is impossible to

         18  remove in all weather conditions.

         19                 As this Committee considers these

         20  proposed bills to assist in the fight against

         21  graffiti, I feel it useful to update the Council

         22  Members about some of the work performed this year

         23  by the CAU related to graffiti removal.

         24                 I would invite both this Committee

         25  and the public at large to log onto our CAU website,
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          2  which has recently been upgraded. The address is

          3  www.nyc.gov/cau. Click on the drop box and look for

          4  community assistance to find our website.

          5                 There you will find some helpful

          6  information about how we in the Mayor's office can

          7  work with neighborhood groups, civic organizations,

          8  block associations, and tenant groups to rid various

          9  neighborhoods of graffiti.

         10                 By clicking on the Lincoln title

         11  anti-graffiti paint program, the public can download

         12  information on the anti-graffiti task force, as well

         13  as download PDF files to obtain waivers.

         14                 What is a waiver, and why is it

         15  required?

         16                 Well, the waiver grants the City to

         17  enter onto private property and it serves as the

         18  release of liability form. In addition, the waiver

         19  gives permission to the City and/or community groups

         20  to remove graffiti or paint over graffiti on private

         21  property.

         22                 It is important to note that the

         23  failure to obtain a waiver for private property,

         24  means we at CAU or the task force are unable to

         25  clean that location.
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          2                 Earlier I referenced the enthusiasm

          3  by a community when it participates in a graffiti

          4  clean-up.

          5                 Toward that end, CAU has lent a

          6  helping hand to these communities by providing the

          7  paint, rollers, brushes and other related items free

          8  of charge to community groups that were requested

          9  from our office.

         10                 Looking at this committee and its

         11  members, I know of several Council members who have

         12  sent staff members to CAU to obtain these waivers,

         13  and I would welcome and encourage all Council

         14  members to do the same.

         15                 The waivers I just referenced are

         16  also used for the distribution of paint and supplies

         17  to community groups. Waivers showing the buildings

         18  targeted for cleaning must accompany this

         19  application.

         20                 For those members of the public who

         21  cannot access the Internet, I would encourage them

         22  to obtain waivers through CAU by calling

         23  212.788.7413. Ask for Anti-Graffiti Coordinator Ray

         24  Carera.

         25                 The applications for the paint

                                                            27

          1  PUBLIC SAFETY AND CONSUMER AFFAIRS

          2  program and the waiver form can be filled out on

          3  line but must be printed out and faxed 212.788.7819

          4  or mailed to the CAU at our new office location,

          5  located at 100 Gold Street, New York, New York,

          6  10038.

          7                 The public can also contact their

          8  local community Board or Police Precinct to obtain

          9  the forms.

         10                 With the cold weather almost upon us,

         11  CAU will use the down time to our advantage. Through

         12  our agency's borough directors, as well as the

         13  contacts with neighborhood organizations, we at CAU

         14  plan to take a more proactive role this winter by

         15  collecting as many anti-graffiti waiver forms as

         16  possible.

         17                 When the weather turns favorable next

         18  spring, the CAU will once again activate both the

         19  Anti-Graffiti Task Force and the Mayor's Paint

         20  Program and be out in the community and painting

         21  immediately and without delay.

         22                 Finally, in the spirit of efficiency

         23  and publicly acknowledging to this Committee that we

         24  in government can always improve on our work and do

         25  things better. We at CAU have reviewed some of our
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          2  Anti-Graffiti Initiatives of the past year and plan

          3  some changes.

          4                 The findings show that often times

          5  the clean-ups were too sporadic.

          6                 For example, the task force might

          7  have an Anti-Graffiti Initiative in the Bronx on

          8  Monday, Staten Island on Tuesday, Upper Manhattan on

          9  Wednesday, Brooklyn on Thursday and Queens on

         10  Friday.

         11                 To change that, CAU will coordinate

         12  future initiatives, like cleaning and painting

         13  larger sections of the community within a single

         14  borough or specific area, as opposed to the

         15  scattered attacks in the past.

         16                 In addition, I would like to convey

         17  to this Committee the importance of the issue as

         18  viewed by the public.

         19                 The CAU often serves as the

         20  repository of complaints about various

         21  inefficiencies within City government. Graffiti is

         22  almost at the top of the list.

         23                 Whether it be phone calls to our

         24  agencies, emergency operations response unit or

         25  direct e-mails to our agencies through our website,
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          2  the public has made its dissatisfaction with

          3  graffiti abundantly clear. No community welcomes it,

          4  very few are willing to tolerate it. It is our job,

          5  however, to address it.

          6                 In my opinion, these bills assist in

          7  accomplishing that goal.

          8                 The Bloomberg Administration has made

          9  graffiti a top priority. The CAU would welcome this

         10  Committee as partners to help us rid the City of its

         11  problem.

         12                 I thank you for this opportunity and

         13  I welcome any questions you may have.

         14                 CHAIRPERSON VALLONE: Thank you.

         15                 Chief, we're going to make a slight

         16  change. We're going to allow you to finish your

         17  testimony and then we will just open up the floor to

         18  questions about any topic. I think it will be

         19  simpler that way.

         20                 Continue. Thank you.

         21                 CHIEF SCAGNELLI: Graffiti is a

         22  pernicious offense that communicates a message of

         23  disorder and chaos. Complaints of graffiti are made

         24  to the Police Department through many channels,

         25  including precinct community councils, community
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          2  meetings, observations by officers, notification by

          3  community members, discussion with elected

          4  officials, and other city agencies, and calls to the

          5  quality of life hot line at 888-677-LIFE, which is

          6  the 677-5433.

          7                 There were 1,422 complaints of

          8  graffiti received on the hot line through the first

          9  ten months of 2002, whereas, there were a total of

         10  152,000 calls received on that hot line for all

         11  matters.

         12                 I would like to describe for you the

         13  Police Department's enforcement efforts with respect

         14  to addressing and preventing graffiti.

         15                 The Police Department is the

         16  enforcement component of the Mayor's Anti-Graffiti

         17  Task Force, which is a vital part of the City's

         18  overall strategy to combat graffiti. It is essential

         19  that any law enforcement action, be supported by the

         20  actual removal of graffiti. The primary goal of

         21  graffiti vandals is to have their work seen.

         22                 The only way to truly thwart and

         23  discourage these vandals is to prevent them from

         24  realizing their goal through the removal of the

         25  graffiti as quickly as it appears.
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          2                 While officers in precincts, housing,

          3  police, service areas and transit districts give

          4  attention to graffiti conditions as part of their

          5  normal patrol duties. The Police Department also

          6  maintains three specialized units devoted

          7  specifically to combatting graffiti vandalism in New

          8  York City.

          9                 These units are the

         10  anti-graffiti/vandalism unit of the Patrol Services

         11  Bureau's Special Operations Division, the Housing

         12  Bureau's Anti-Graffiti Unit, and the vandal squad of

         13  the Transit Division's Special Operations District.

         14                 These three specialized units

         15  coordinate their efforts working together and with

         16  other commands in the Police Department to share

         17  information and strategies.

         18                 The Transit Vandal Squad and the

         19  Housing Anti-Graffiti Unit interact closely with the

         20  authorities that control the facilities where they

         21  are focused.

         22                 The New York City Transit and Housing

         23  Authority have systems in place to clean up graffiti

         24  promptly, which, as we have noted, is one of the

         25  most effective methods of combatting this type of
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          2  vandalism.

          3                 In the first ten months of 2002, the

          4  Police Department effected 667 arrests for graffiti

          5  offenses. Of that number, 52 percent were affected

          6  by the members of the three specialized units.

          7                 In addition to the existing

          8  specialized units, the Police Department is

          9  addressing graffiti by creating a full-time position

         10  for a captain, who is responsible for coordinating

         11  the anti-graffiti efforts not only of the members of

         12  these three graffiti units mentioned, but also of

         13  other officers in the field.

         14                 This captain will report directly to

         15  our Chief of Department.

         16                 The Police Department maintains a

         17  database of graffiti tags or signatures, which is

         18  currently being upgraded to provide investigators

         19  with information on offenders and their tags. In

         20  addition, all of the Department's field commands

         21  have been surveyed regarding their graffiti hot

         22  spots, and these locations have been incorporated

         23  into a new database to assist in directing efforts

         24  where they are most needed.

         25                 Most graffiti vandalism is committed
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          2  by young men involved in the specific graffiti

          3  subculture. Among these, a hard core of experienced

          4  graffiti vandals, who form no more than 15 percent,

          5  that's 1-5 percent of the graffiti community, commit

          6  the vast majority of graffiti crime.

          7                 Our mission is to apprehend these

          8  vandals and assist in their prosecution.

          9                 The presence or absence of signs or

         10  disorder in a community can contribute to whether or

         11  not more serious crime occurs.

         12                 Graffiti vandalism is one of the most

         13  visible offenses against the City's quality of life,

         14  and that is why it's reduction is so very important.

         15                 No neighborhood anywhere in the City

         16  should have to tolerate graffiti. Passage of these

         17  bills will assist us in working together with the

         18  communities we serve to combat this blight.

         19                 Thank you for providing me and the

         20  Police Department with the opportunity to discuss

         21  this important matter affecting the quality of life

         22  in New York City, and I, and we, welcome your

         23  questions.

         24                 CHAIRPERSON VALLONE: Thank you, all.

         25                 It's always gratifying when our
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          2  witnesses use terms like excellent initiative and

          3  strongly support and much needed, would that would

          4  happen more. And because you all were so nice, we're

          5  going to implement just about every change you

          6  requested, as you probably know, before this,

          7  because we've had discussions. We are going to add

          8  the chemical substance language you requested. We're

          9  going to make the period of time 120 days. We're

         10  going to change the titles to better explain what

         11  the bill is about.

         12                 Whether or not we combine them is

         13  something we're working with the legal teams on. We

         14  probably will wind up combining the more criminal

         15  ones and leave the Consumer Affairs ones separate,

         16  but that's something we're still working on.

         17                 But we are going to make all the

         18  changes that you requested in your testimony.

         19                 Again, we're going to ask questions

         20  now about the bills themselves, or any area you

         21  would like to ask a question about.

         22                 Are there any other areas of the

         23  bills as they are submitted, other than the ones

         24  that you mention that you think we should change?

         25                 CHIEF SCAGNELLI: No.
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          2                 CHAIRPERSON VALLONE: Anyone else?

          3                 Okay. You went into it briefly at the

          4  end, I just wanted to know with a little more

          5  detail, who is the typical graffiti vandal in your

          6  experience?

          7                 CHIEF SCAGNELLI: The typical

          8  graffiti, those hard core 15 percent --

          9                 CHAIRPERSON VALLONE: Right.

         10                 CHIEF SCAGNELLI:-- Which do the vast

         11  majority of the graffiti, tend to be young people,

         12  they tend to be middle or upper class, they tend to

         13  be primarily white and some Hispanic.

         14                 CHAIRPERSON VALLONE: When you say

         15  young, 12, 19?

         16                 CHIEF SCAGNELLI: Anywhere from 14 or

         17  15 up to very early twenties, 21, 22.

         18                 CHAIRPERSON VALLONE: So the middle or

         19  upper class?

         20                 CHIEF SCAGNELLI: Middle and upper

         21  class.

         22                 CHAIRPERSON VALLONE: And in your

         23  experience, you said that's 15 percent, the entire

         24  group of graffiti subculture?

         25                 CHIEF SCAGNELLI: Fifteen percent of

                                                            36

          1  PUBLIC SAFETY AND CONSUMER AFFAIRS

          2  the entire 100 percent group of vandals do the vast

          3  majority of the graffiti.

          4                 CHAIRPERSON VALLONE: Yes. Again, as a

          5  former prosecutor, I agree with that 100 percent.

          6  Especially in my neighborhood of Astoria, which is

          7  one of the neighborhoods that you are targeting with

          8  your program, it is the same tags you see over and

          9  over again. Once one of these kids is arrested it

         10  does make a huge difference in the problem.

         11                 The arrests, how many graffiti

         12  arrests are made typically in a year? And has it

         13  been going up or down recently?

         14                 CHIEF SCAGNELLI: There were 652

         15  arrests made so far up to date in the New York City

         16  Police Department.

         17                 CHAIRPERSON VALLONE: How does that

         18  compare to last year?

         19                 CHIEF SCAGNELLI: It is down from last

         20  year, and it's down from Year 2000, and perhaps the

         21  reason for that has been September 11th, where we

         22  have additional duties for some of these units with

         23  regards to terrorism, for example, within the

         24  transit division.

         25                 CHAIRPERSON VALLONE: Right. My next
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          2  question was going to be, I don't believe it's down

          3  because it's any lack of graffiti, or graffiti is

          4  less of a problem; would you agree with that?

          5                 CHIEF SCAGNELLI: Graffiti, in the

          6  Police Department opinion, graffiti is the very same

          7  problem that it was last year and the year before.

          8  It hasn't gone up, but it hasn't gone down.

          9                 CHAIRPERSON VALLONE: Which is one of

         10  the reasons that we commend your anti-graffiti

         11  efforts, and we're aware of the fact that you've

         12  increased your efforts in that regard.

         13                 Again, in your expert opinion, anyone

         14  can answer this. Once an arrest is made, how would

         15  you describe the process of -- what is your opinion

         16  about the process of what happens to these kids

         17  next? Is the punishment strong enough? Is the

         18  punishment appropriate? Is the punishment too harsh?

         19  What do you believe should be done?

         20                 CHIEF SCAGNELLI: Well, as you know,

         21  as a former Assistant ADA, I would think that there

         22  aren't too many graffiti offenders that go to jail.

         23                 However, an arrest of one of these

         24  graffiti individuals impacts pretty strongly on

         25  their lives, so to make the arrest is extremely
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          2  significant. But some of them, when they are

          3  arrested for the first time cease and desist.

          4                 It's an interesting subculture. We've

          5  had graffiti violators from many parts of Europe

          6  whose main goal in life is to come to New York City

          7  and do graffiti on our subways. It's an amazing

          8  thing.

          9                 On the Internet there are hundreds

         10  and hundreds and hundreds of pages, if not more, on

         11  graffiti with these graffiti vandals speaking to

         12  each other, nationwide and worldwide. It's an

         13  amazing subculture.

         14                 CHAIRPERSON VALLONE: Are you able to

         15  use that Internet process that you just described?

         16                 CHIEF SCAGNELLI: We made arrests

         17  using the Internet. Lieutenant Steve Monar, who is

         18  sitting here behind me, is the commanding officer of

         19  the Transit Unit. He may very well be the prime

         20  expert in the field perhaps in the world, and he's

         21  on that Internet every day. His men and women are on

         22  the Internet every day, and they do pick up bits and

         23  pieces and they've made arrests because of the

         24  Internet.

         25                 CHAIRPERSON VALLONE: Lieutenant, we'd
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          2  be remiss if we didn't have the prime premiere

          3  expert in the world on graffiti sitting up at the

          4  front table here.

          5                 CHIEF SCAGNELLI: Steve, come up here.

          6                 CHAIRPERSON VALLONE: We need to pick

          7  your brain.

          8                 CHIEF SCAGNELLI: Well, the only

          9  reason I said it, Steve, is because it's true.

         10                 CHAIRPERSON VALLONE: James Sanders

         11  wants to know if you have a tag yourself.

         12                 LIEUTENANT MONAR: No. Actually I

         13  never did graffiti. And my kids know if they ever do

         14  it, it's not going to be good.

         15                 CHAIRPERSON VALLONE: What you just

         16  said, you're absolutely right, they don't go to

         17  jail, but some reason with graffiti, or if it does

         18  make a big difference when they're arrested the

         19  first time, probably because of the fact that some

         20  of them are middle or upper class, when they're

         21  arrested, many of them, I guess their cover is blown

         22  and it does make a big difference, and for some

         23  reason it does seem to stop them.

         24                 But Chairman Reed wanted to follow up

         25  on some of the questions I had just asked.
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          2                 CHAIRPERSON REED: Yes, I just was

          3  curious, in listening to your testimony. Do we have

          4  to witness this act of graffiti in order to arrest

          5  them?

          6                 LIEUTENANT MONAR: For the most part

          7  it's an observation crime.

          8                 We have tried to go into the DA's

          9  Offices and say well, you know, it's his signature,

         10  and we can compare it.

         11                 We can take somebody in to speak to

         12  them based on that, but we haven't as yet been able

         13  to get into court and have an officer designated as

         14  an expert witness.

         15                 Unfortunately what happens is, a lot

         16  of times if we have a really good case, we have like

         17  one arrest and then we want to put a bunch of

         18  photographs on the table and say to the guy, look,

         19  we know you did all of this, the signature is

         20  identical, they're so egotistical they tend to brag,

         21  rather than say, hey, take me to court. We'd love to

         22  take them to court and let the court say, hey, you

         23  know, you're right, but they always plead out for

         24  the most part.

         25                 We've targeted, in the last few years
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          2  we've changed our focus a little bit. As the Chief

          3  said, 15 percent of the graffiti vandals are

          4  probably responsible for 70 percent of the damage,

          5  and what we've done is a change of focus where we've

          6  gone after those individuals, because we know we're

          7  going to get more bang for the buck. We know we're

          8  going to get an arrest that's going to go through

          9  the subculture, you know, so and so got arrested. It

         10  means a lot to see the upper echelon of the graffiti

         11  culture, much the way, you know, grabbing a couple

         12  of terrorists who are more, you know, prevalent in

         13  that subculture, you know, has an affect on arrest.

         14  Those that might be on the fringe. So, we've

         15  targeted those individuals in the last years, and

         16  we've been very successful at it, even though the

         17  arrests are down, our felony arrests are up.

         18                 CHAIRPERSON REED: Do we offer any

         19  sort of reward for identifying people?

         20                 I mean, I'm sure other people know,

         21  or their parents or somebody knows that these people

         22  are out here doing this and bragging, look at what

         23  I've done. Have we ever offered, have we put a

         24  dollar amount on what it costs and so therefore said

         25  to the community this is what it's costing us with a
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          2  budget crisis that we have, you know, your help in

          3  identifying these people? Have we tried that

          4  approach?

          5                 LIEUTENANT MONAR: There is a reward

          6  program in place, there has been for several years,

          7  but to date no money has been distributed. It's for

          8  arrest and conviction. And like you said, you said

          9  sometimes a parent should know, we've gone into some

         10  of these homes in the last few years, we've done

         11  search warrants where we've gone after these

         12  targeted individuals. Their bedrooms are covered

         13  with graffiti. Walls, ceilings, floors, and the

         14  parents always say to you, I didn't know he did it

         15  outside. I only thought he did it in his room.

         16                 So, the parents sometimes don't know,

         17  or they're in denial.

         18                 CHAIRPERSON REED: Thank you.

         19                 CHAIRPERSON VALLONE: Is there

         20  something we can do in that regard to assist you

         21  with the law?

         22                 LIEUTENANT MONAR: New York City

         23  Transit does it.

         24                 CHAIRPERSON VALLONE: I'm sorry?

         25  Repeat that.
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          2                 LIEUTENANT MONAR: New York City

          3  Transit will go after -- their Community Services

          4  Section has on occasion gone after individuals for

          5  monetary, to pay monetary damage for the damage done

          6  by their minor children. In one case there was a

          7  movie director. They sued him for $32,000 and won.

          8  His son happens to be one of the more prolific

          9  graffiti vandals, and he's not like a small-time

         10  director, he's a big time director.

         11                 CHAIRPERSON VALLONE: How often is

         12  that done, the civil suit?

         13                 LIEUTENANT MONAR: Not often. It's

         14  usually targeted cases.

         15                 CHAIRPERSON VALLONE: For the record,

         16  the fingers were apart about an inch? Okay.

         17                 Can we expand that in any way? Is

         18  there anything that can be done to expand that

         19  program?

         20                 LIEUTENANT MONAR: That's a question

         21  for the lawyers.

         22                 CHAIRPERSON VALLONE: A question for

         23  the lawyers.

         24                 LIEUTENANT MONAR: I don't know.

         25                 CHAIRPERSON VALLONE: I'm a lawyer.
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          2  So, we will question the lawyers when the hearing is

          3  over.

          4                 You started to talk about how the

          5  arrests are made and you said it's observation. How

          6  are these observations done? Do you have stakeouts?

          7  The police just happen to be driving by in a car?

          8  What's the normal procedure?

          9                 LIEUTENANT MONAR: There's a whole

         10  host of ways it's done. Mostly by the patrol force.

         11  It's done, you know, an officer would be driving by,

         12  see them, or a call to the hot line or a call to 911

         13  that there's vandalism being done.

         14                 From my unit, we do a lot of

         15  stakeouts and a lot of targeted patrol towards areas

         16  where we know graffiti is going to occur.

         17                 CHAIRPERSON VALLONE: Commissioner,

         18  while we have you, you mentioned that you were going

         19  to use your down time over the winter and then once

         20  again activate the Graffiti Task Force but you

         21  didn't specifically state what that meant. Does this

         22  mean it doesn't exist over the winter?

         23                 COMMISSIONER GREENSPUN: Oh, yes, in

         24  my testimony I had mentioned that there were certain

         25  variables that curtail our ability, most notably is
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          2  weather. When the temperature drops below 50

          3  degrees, the paint that we use to paint over the

          4  graffiti has problems sticking. I think it has to do

          5  with the fact that the temperature inside the

          6  building and the temperature outside the building

          7  are at such a variance so that it just doesn't stick

          8  to the wall, so what we find is we tend to activate

          9  the Anti-Graffiti Task Force and the Mayor's Paint

         10  Program, depending on whether or not you get a mild

         11  spring, we can start it as early as march, and

         12  depending on the weather this year, if we get a few

         13  more days over 50 degrees we can probably continue

         14  it. But once December hits the program needs to lie

         15  dormant and then start up again in the spring.

         16                 CHAIRPERSON VALLONE: Thank you.

         17                 I'm going to turn it over for

         18  questions to the members.

         19                 The first question will be from

         20  Council Member Felder, who is yielding to Council

         21  Member Sears to go first. Beauty before age. No, the

         22  other way around, Simcha.

         23                 CHAIRPERSON REED: You're going to

         24  Albany. We know it's got your whole head twisted.

         25                 COUNCIL MEMBER SEARS: First I wanted
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          2  to thank Chair Vallone and Chair Reed for the

          3  opportunity to sit in on the meeting. It's such an

          4  important issue throughout the City, and certainly

          5  in my district, and in the shore time that I'm

          6  sitting here, I've learned a lot, I really have. So,

          7  I thank you.

          8                 There were a couple of things. One,

          9  you addressed the issue of the signature, and

         10  apparently with this 15 percent they go around

         11  signing and they're identified by that. I know

         12  that's what happened in Jackson Heights and Elmhurst

         13  a lot, in Corona.

         14                 If you don't observe, and there's

         15  very little that you can do about that, so you know

         16  consistently that this graffiti is being done by the

         17  same groups that are doing it. They know that

         18  nothing can be done to them unless you're somehow

         19  you're there observing. So, it seems like I just

         20  wonder how we can get a handle on what I think is

         21  the most offensive thing to a community.

         22                 LIEUTENANT MONAR: It's not entirely

         23  true.

         24                 COUNCIL MEMBER SEARS: Okay.

         25                 LIEUTENANT MONAR: I mean, we've taken
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          2  that ability from them. They had the thought a few

          3  years ago, they went out did graffiti and got away

          4  with it, got home that night and didn't get arrested

          5  - we got away with it, that was great. We have in

          6  the last few years taken that thought away from them

          7  by going we know it's you, we know you did it, and

          8  we'll sit down. What that gives us the right to do,

          9  and maybe not the right to make an arrest but it

         10  certainly gives us a right to talk to them.

         11                 Maybe there was some extenuating

         12  circumstances.  We actually have confidential

         13  informants that will tell us they're going to be out

         14  here or out there. So, years ago, yes, we couldn't

         15  touch them, but they don't have that thought

         16  anymore.

         17                 If you read the posting on the

         18  Internet website or read some of the magazines,

         19  there's graffiti magazines, there's graffiti video

         20  and these websites, and I'm a veracious reader,

         21  they're afraid of us. They really are. There was an

         22  article in a magazine called Shout New York

         23  recently, which called my unit "an ever-working

         24  entity," and "a cross between the boogie man and big

         25  brother." And I don't know that they didn't mean to
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          2  compliment me, but I took it as a compliment.

          3                 COUNCIL MEMBER SEARS: It's a

          4  compliment.

          5                 CHIEF SCAGNELLI: Council Member, you

          6  make a very good point, and what the Lieutenant said

          7  is, lots of times they'll see the tag out there and

          8  they'll call the individual in and sometimes that

          9  individual confessed and then you can arrest him, or

         10  her, but it's mostly him, based upon a confession.

         11                 However, you bring up a very good

         12  point, that it would be very good for prosecutors to

         13  prosecute on the tag, just like they would on a

         14  forged signature. I think it's perhaps a can do

         15  thing, I don't know. Perhaps Chairman Vallone could

         16  know better, but I think it's certainly not

         17  far-fetched, and I think it's right on the edge and

         18  perhaps we could do prosecutions with that.

         19                 COUNCIL MEMBER SEARS: Particularly

         20  that it's no longer a quality of life issue, with

         21  that demonstration of that etching acid, we're

         22  really talking about safety to health.

         23                 CHIEF SCAGNELLI: Yes.

         24                 COUNCIL MEMBER SEARS: You know, I've

         25  seen it, and I've seen people touch, because they
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          2  just want to know the depth of it actually. So, it

          3  seems that, and the bills are wonderful, and you

          4  know, I urge the support of that and I have no doubt

          5  that they will be. But I think that we have to look

          6  a little bit further onto the health hazards of

          7  this, and how far we can really go with that,

          8  because it's continuing.

          9                 And actually, of the offenders, what

         10  is the recidivism, and I hate to use that word, but

         11  graffiti keeps coming back and back, certainly in so

         12  many parts of this City it does, and it keeps

         13  reoccurring by the same offenders.

         14                 So, what happens with this huge

         15  effort, Jonathan Greenspun, in working with

         16  community groups that will do this? I often thought

         17  that landlords who have their buildings with

         18  graffiti and have the community groups coming around

         19  to remove them, are in a very comfortable position,

         20  because it removes some of that responsibility of

         21  the landlord, and certainly areas where these

         22  community groups are doing it, they get back and

         23  they get to the same areas where this graffiti

         24  reoccurs, and a good many times they're in the

         25  commercial areas and they're on the apartment
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          2  buildings and they really take the job away, what I

          3  think is the responsibility of the landlord.

          4                 COMMISSIONER GREENSPUN: There has

          5  been a series of, there's a frustration on the part

          6  of us when it comes to cleaning up a location only

          7  to come back the next day and in some case you've

          8  left them a clean canvas almost to cover up.

          9                 The way we've addressed that issue is

         10  to provide the paint to the groups so that the task

         11  force might not come back, but to have the community

         12  group sort of maintain an area, and then what will

         13  happen is that once you cover up an area again and

         14  again and again, the vandal tends to move on to

         15  another location.

         16                 As for your comment, my understanding

         17  is, having inquired with the Department of

         18  Sanitation, it is not illegal to have graffiti on

         19  your building right now, and that opens up, I may be

         20  wrong but --

         21                 COUNCIL MEMBER SEARS: Mr. Chairman,

         22  maybe you'll have to look at that.

         23                 CHAIRPERSON VALLONE: You're going to

         24  be a lot of work, Helen. You're not even on my

         25  Committee.
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          2                 COUNCIL MEMBER SEARS: But that's a

          3  very important point.

          4                 COUNCIL MEMBER GOLDEN: We tried to do

          5  that three years ago.

          6                 COUNCIL MEMBER SEARS: You did?

          7                 COUNCIL MEMBER GOLDEN: Yes.

          8                 COUNCIL MEMBER SEARS: Was it ruled

          9  down?

         10                 Actually, then, graffiti has to be

         11  considered.

         12                 COUNCIL MEMBER GOLDEN: We tried to

         13  bring that bill forward about three years ago, and

         14  we didn't get too far with it.

         15                 It's probably three years ago and

         16  about eight years ago, and Sal Albanese was a City

         17  Council member and I testified before him, and at

         18  that time it was Tom Ognibene was the leader of the

         19  City Council, the Minority party, he beat the living

         20  daylights out of me on the constitutional right. But

         21  I do believe there should be some type of

         22  legislation that requires somebody to remove

         23  graffiti off the front of their doors in 30 days.

         24                 And the other thing is, three strikes

         25  you're out. You ask somebody three times for
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          2  graffiti, at that point you should move that to a

          3  felony class and then they get the message.

          4                 CHAIRPERSON VALLONE: Thank you. We've

          5  obviously been joined by -- the last time I

          6  introduced this man I said soon to be State Senator,

          7  Marty Golden.

          8                 COUNCIL MEMBER SEARS: Thank you, Mr.

          9  Chair.

         10                 CHAIRPERSON VALLONE: Thank you,

         11  Council Member Sears.

         12                 You had asked a question about

         13  arresting on tag, based on tags alone, and in my

         14  humble opinion I think we go back to the age-old

         15  question, problem between DAs' offices and the

         16  Police Department, the difference between probable

         17  cause to arrest and proof beyond a reasonable doubt

         18  at trial.

         19                 In my opinion, a tag like that would

         20  give probable cause to arrest. I probably wouldn't

         21  rise to proof beyond a reasonable doubt at trial

         22  that the person actually did that tag, and that's

         23  the situation that will probably need to be worked

         24  out at the highest levels between the DAs and the

         25  Police Commissioner, and if we could be of any
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          2  assistance in that, you know, we stand ready to,

          3  obviously.

          4                 Again, I think that there is probable

          5  cause to arrest based on the tags, and once you do

          6  the arrest, that's what we discussed before, pretty

          7  much the problem is solved, even though we're not

          8  going to get a conviction at trial, just based on a

          9  tag that no one has seen sprayed on there.

         10                 LIEUTENANT MONAR: We have in a couple

         11  of boroughs, Queens being one of them, we have what

         12  we call a signature tag program, where every DA's

         13  office I have a contact with, so it's no longer me

         14  calling the DA, having to introduce myself, tell

         15  them what I do, I call the DA's office and I speak

         16  to one person, and when I call Queens and I get Mary

         17  Ellen Stanton on the phone, I say, Mary, I'd like to

         18  come in and talk to you about a case, and we show

         19  her the photographs. This is the arrest, this is

         20  what we got on video, or this is what we got in

         21  photographs, can we lock them up for these other

         22  cases?

         23                 She always says yes. The problem is

         24  when we get them in, I mean the working relationship

         25  between us and the DA's Office is great. We actually
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          2  would like one of them to say, no, take me to trial,

          3  when we get them in, they are so overwhelmed by the

          4  fact that we know it's them that they normally

          5  plead. And we've joked about it. We said, like, you

          6  know, we'd like one of them to just say, hey, prove

          7  it. Because once we go to court and get case law on

          8  it, you know, that becomes a powerful tool. But we

          9  do have the program, it does work in targeted cases.

         10                 CHAIRPERSON VALLONE: Don't be so sure

         11  you're going to get caseloads the right way. There

         12  are some very liberal judges here.

         13                 LIEUTENANT MONAR: Yes, exactly.

         14                 CHAIRPERSON VALLONE: I think you're

         15  doing it perfect the way you're doing it right now.

         16                 Council Member Reed needed to have

         17  the vote opened up one more time for Council Member

         18  Sanders.

         19                 COUNCIL MEMBER SANDERS: I vote aye. I

         20  vote aye on both sir.

         21                 CHAIRPERSON VALLONE: Council Member

         22  Golden, do you have a question?

         23                 Sorry, are you going to yield to age

         24  again, or are you going to go this time? Okay,

         25  Council Member Felder, the floor is yours.
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          2                 COUNCIL MEMBER FELDER: Okay, thank

          3  you.

          4                 Some of us are not -- some of the

          5  Council are not attorneys or former policemen, and

          6  we're not as educated. I have a few questions.

          7                 First of all, you discussed the age,

          8  what can you do to a 14-year-old, assuming that you

          9  do find them doing graffiti; what can you do to a

         10  14-year-old doing graffiti on somebody's wall?

         11                 LIEUTENANT MONAR: Most of the time

         12  it's community service. There is community service

         13  sections in each court. We use them very, very --

         14  you know, a lot. Almost every case of a 14, 15 year

         15  old. You have to understand it's a subculture, and

         16  when they start in a subculture 14, 15, as they get

         17  older, they either get more immersed in that

         18  subculture or they fall out of it, and the arrest of

         19  a 14 year old might be enough to get him out of the

         20  subculture. And, so, that's always helpful as well.

         21                 CHIEF SCAGNELLI: Yes, and the

         22  community service would be appropriate for a 14 year

         23  old, and that, in many cases, as the Lieutenant

         24  said, straightens them out.

         25                 COUNCIL MEMBER FELDER: Okay, in
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          2  addition to that, when somebody is standing on the

          3  street and they spray paint somebody's house, that's

          4  one case. When somebody, for example, I can't prove

          5  that it's so but I have to disagree with you, just

          6  in my own neighborhood, I walk the street most of

          7  the time, not at night but I walk the streets and --

          8                 CHIEF SCAGNELLI: You can walk there

          9  at night, it's very safe in Borough Park.

         10                 COUNCIL MEMBER FELDER: That's because

         11  of the work you have done there before you were

         12  where you were, you are now, but I see, to me it

         13  seems clearly that in the neighborhoods that I am

         14  in, despite the good work that the Community

         15  Assistance Unit is doing, you know, in the various

         16  targeting of different areas, I think that graffiti

         17  is up in my district, and I don't think that my

         18  district is different, but I'd let everybody else

         19  talk for themselves.

         20                 I don't know why, but it's up, and,

         21  so, back to the question. For example on the L Line

         22  or the F Train on McDonald Avenue, there's graffiti.

         23  I don't know how they do it, maybe our expert knows

         24  how they do it, but somebody has to get up there,

         25  and they're either hanging like somebody from a
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          2  circus, you know, upside down or hanging doing the

          3  graffiti, and it's all over the place, let's assume

          4  that it's an adult, when you prosecute this person,

          5  besides the actual damage, is there a penalty for

          6  being on property that they don't belong on?

          7                 LIEUTENANT MONAR: We appropriately

          8  would charge criminal trespass. What you're

          9  referring to, in the last few years in the graffiti

         10  subculture, getting the graffiti in a very

         11  hard-to-hit spot has become a big thing, and part of

         12  it is going up as high as you can, they call it

         13  "doing the Heavens," and I know exactly what you're

         14  talking about. My office happens to be on McDonald

         15  Avenue, so I'm very familiar with it.

         16                 COUNCIL MEMBER FELDER: Yes?

         17                 LIEUTENANT MONAR: Yes. Just for being

         18  in a subway tunnel, we can grab a guy in a subway

         19  tunnel or on a subway track, elevated line, or

         20  hanging from a structure, before that spray can ever

         21  emits one little spray, he's already committing a

         22  crime of criminal trespass.

         23                 COUNCIL MEMBER FELDER: How close to a

         24  house on a side walk? And if somebody is six inches

         25  away from a house spray painting, that's still
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          2  considered public property?

          3                 LIEUTENANT MONAR: That's public

          4  property.

          5                 COUNCIL MEMBER FELDER: Okay.

          6                 In addition to that, these waivers,

          7  Commissioner Greenspun, first of all, how is your

          8  wife feeling?

          9                 COMMISSIONER GREENSPUN: She'll be

         10  feeling a lot better when she gives birth in a few

         11  weeks.

         12                 COUNCIL MEMBER FELDER: Okay. We all

         13  wish her well.

         14                 COMMISSIONER GREENSPUN: Thank you.

         15                 COUNCIL MEMBER FELDER: Okay.

         16                 COMMISSIONER GREENSPUN: So will I, by

         17  the way.

         18                 COUNCIL MEMBER FELDER: I won't be too

         19  tough on you.

         20                 How long do these waivers last? Are

         21  they forever? Are they annual?

         22                 COMMISSIONER GREENSPUN: I don't

         23  believe there is a time limit on it. They just have

         24  to have, the provision of the waiver needs to have a

         25  specific location on it, because that's what helps.
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          2  And Councilman, as to your comment about McDonald

          3  Avenue, I know that community districts and Council

          4  districts are coterminous, but for the purposes of

          5  this conversation, just some statistics for you. In

          6  the confines of Community Board 12, there were a

          7  total of 69 clean-ups this season, including,

          8  according to my list, what looks to be eight on

          9  McDonald Avenue, running in the numbers as low as

         10  290, all the way up to 1,175. So we did manage to

         11  get to Community Board 12, close to 70 times this

         12  season.

         13                 COUNCIL MEMBER FELDER: We appreciate

         14  seeing you often.

         15                 So, you haven't been on top of the L

         16  once? I dare say that, because your unit does

         17  wonderful work on the sidewalk. You can't do what

         18  they do, unless you want to go to Heaven as well.

         19  So, I'm talking about the Ls, and you have been

         20  doing wonderful work on the sidewalk in on the

         21  streets on McDonald Avenue.

         22                 The last question I had was, you

         23  mentioned earlier, Chief, that your statistics show

         24  that they're about the same, right?

         25                 CHIEF SCAGNELLI: The amount of
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          2  graffiti?

          3                 COUNCIL MEMBER FELDER: Right.

          4                 CHIEF SCAGNELLI: Yes. By the way,

          5  that doesn't mean that the Police Department can't

          6  do better. We can do better, and we will do better,

          7  and that's one of the reasons that Commissioner

          8  Kelly has now had Chief Esposito, the Chief of

          9  Department, select a captain to coordinate all of

         10  the graffiti enforcement throughout the City which

         11  will certainly help and it will benefit our

         12  enforcement.

         13                 COUNCIL MEMBER FELDER: Okay, but we

         14  can all do better.

         15                 We can all do better, but the issue

         16  with the numbers, the numbers game, what I'd like to

         17  know is how do you come up with the numbers?

         18                 CHIEF SCAGNELLI: Of arrests?

         19                 COUNCIL MEMBER FELDER: Yes, those are

         20  numbers of arrests.

         21                 CHIEF SCAGNELLI: 652.

         22                 COUNCIL MEMBER FELDER: So, you're

         23  saying to me that the number of arrests, I want to

         24  know about the number of graffiti, whether graffiti

         25  is up or down, you're saying that as far as you're
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          2  concerned, that it's the same that it's been, it's

          3  no better, no worse; is that true?

          4                 CHIEF SCAGNELLI: That's correct.

          5                 COUNCIL MEMBER FELDER: And what are

          6  you basing that on?

          7                 CHIEF SCAGNELLI: We're basing it on

          8  interviews of the three commanding officers that are

          9  the experts that deal with that every day, and based

         10  upon talking to particular commanders in particular

         11  communities.

         12                 COUNCIL MEMBER FELDER: But would they

         13  base their opinion --

         14                 CHIEF SCAGNELLI: And also the

         15  complaints, I gave you the statistic of the

         16  complaints on the hot line. The less than one

         17  percent of the complaints that we get on the hot

         18  line are about graffiti.

         19                 COUNCIL MEMBER FELDER: I'm leading

         20  you.

         21                 CHIEF SCAGNELLI: So that has some

         22  significance.

         23                 COUNCIL MEMBER FELDER: I'm about to

         24  lead you.

         25                 CHIEF SCAGNELLI: Okay, go.
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          2                 COUNCIL MEMBER FELDER: Would you say

          3  that there's a possibility that even if graffiti

          4  were up, due to the September 11th events, and

          5  people being concerned a lot more about other

          6  things, even that there's a possibility that I'm

          7  right, that graffiti is up, and you just haven't

          8  been getting as many complaints or an increase in

          9  complaints?

         10                 CHIEF SCAGNELLI: I would think that's

         11  possible.

         12                 COUNCIL MEMBER FELDER: Right.

         13                 CHIEF SCAGNELLI: I don't believe so,

         14  but it's possible. Sure. The arrests this year

         15  compared to last year are down because we're right

         16  over the one-year mark for the World Trade Center,

         17  and in this past year we had lots of other

         18  priorities for specialized units and for the

         19  precincts, and, of course, that's what we had to do.

         20  We'll be making more arrests.

         21                 COUNCIL MEMBER FELDER: There's no

         22  question that you, and, again, that your department

         23  and the Community Assistance Unit have been doing

         24  wonderful work. That's not the issue. All I'm saying

         25  to you is that without crunching numbers, just from
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          2  somebody walking on the street, to me it seems like

          3  there's more graffiti in Felder's neighborhood than

          4  there was two years ago, or a year ago even.

          5                 CHIEF SCAGNELLI: This week I'll walk

          6  through Borough Park and then I'll give you a call

          7  and then I'll give you my opinion.

          8                 COUNCIL MEMBER FELDER: I'd like a

          9  walk with you, if you don't mind.

         10                 CHIEF SCAGNELLI: Okay, sure.

         11                 COUNCIL MEMBER FELDER: Because I'd

         12  like to walk in the areas that Greenspun hasn't

         13  cleaned up.

         14                 CHIEF SCAGNELLI: I'd be happy to.

         15                 COUNCIL MEMBER FELDER: Thank you.

         16                 CHAIRPERSON VALLONE: Thank you,

         17  Council Member.

         18                 Council Member Golden.

         19                 First, let me just say we've been

         20  joined by Council Member Brewer, who is the prime

         21  sponsor of the bill regarding the etching acid.

         22  Thank you, Gale.

         23                 COUNCIL MEMBER GOLDEN: Thank you, Mr.

         24  Chairman. Chairman Reed.

         25                 Commissioner, CAU Commissioner, Chief
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          2  and Lieutenant, and I'm not sure who you are?

          3  Consumer Affairs? Okay, nice to see you. My

          4  colleagues, of course, they're my colleagues. If you

          5  take a look at graffiti and where we've gone over

          6  the past ten years, I mean we've moved mountains,

          7  but we still have, unfortunately to deal with

          8  graffiti on a day-to-day basis, and in some

          9  communities there is an increase.

         10                 Years ago it wasn't taken serious.

         11  Years ago we used to give them a summons and send

         12  them home, they didn't tell mommy or daddy, years

         13  later they pop up on a warrant or some crazy thing

         14  would happen.

         15                 But we've taken it, policing 101 has

         16  changed, and today we take it very seriously, and

         17  they are convicted and sent back to the communities

         18  for community service, which I think is the right

         19  way to do, and the right way to continue to go.

         20                 The only unfortunate part is we have

         21  a bill in here and hope the good Chairman will move

         22  it next year or some time in trying to move up the

         23  grade of graffiti, especially when you lock somebody

         24  up three times for graffiti, I think you should move

         25  that into a felony class, and I think the reason you
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          2  move it into a felony class is cause you really want

          3  to stay serious. You want to make this a serious

          4  crime, and if you make it a serious crime and it's

          5  taken as a serious crime, I think you'll see a drop

          6  in that particular act.

          7                 What I think we don't recognize is

          8  how much as single, and maybe you did that in your

          9  testimony earlier, when you arrest somebody a single

         10  time, how many times has that person gone out and

         11  committed acts of graffiti and when you arrest them

         12  a second time and a third time, the dollars are

         13  damaged by that one individual, by the time it gets

         14  to that third arrest is well over $10,000 in

         15  damages. I'm just throwing a figure out there, but

         16  maybe you can elaborate on that figure and how much

         17  that individual does, before (a) he's caught the

         18  first time, and by the time he's caught the second,

         19  and by the time he's caught the third time, how much

         20  damage that one individual can do to a community or

         21  to a series of communities.

         22                 LIEUTENANT MONAR: Well, it certainly

         23  varies according to the amount of damage.

         24                 Some people are just unlucky and get

         25  arrested a lot, and maybe they don't do that much,
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          2  but we do have the ability to target those vandals.

          3  We did it with a gentleman a couple of years ago in

          4  Glendale where it was estimated that he had caused

          5  hundreds of thousands of dollars worth of damage.

          6  And we got jail time on that case. We do very, very

          7  closely monitor recidivism.

          8                 Every graffiti vandal who is

          9  arrested, we run for warrants the day after his

         10  court appearance to make sure he showed up in court.

         11  If he doesn't, I have a warrant team that will go

         12  out and get him.

         13                 If we get a vandal for the second or

         14  third time, we will let the DA know, listen, we may

         15  have gotten him for doing this little amount here,

         16  but this individual, and maybe not even, maybe it's

         17  his first arrest, I don't care, but if I got him for

         18  doing something small, but I know he's responsible

         19  for a whole lot, I will go to the DA and say, look,

         20  we may have only gotten him for doing $50 worth of

         21  damage, but we know for a fact based on a tag that

         22  this individual is responsible for a whole lot more

         23  and we'd like whatever forces you can bring to bear

         24  for this one single arrest onto this individual. So

         25  we do address recidivism, and those that exist in
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          2  the subculture as the so-called kings of the

          3  subculture, and we target them very strenuously.

          4                 COUNCIL MEMBER GOLDEN: What do you

          5  think about moving into a felony class after three

          6  strikes, after three arrests and a misdemeanor?

          7                 LIEUTENANT MONAR: I don't have a

          8  problem with that. They added -- I'm sorry, Chief,

          9  did you want to?

         10                 CHIEF SCAGNELLI: Go ahead.

         11                 LIEUTENANT MONAR: 145-60 under the

         12  penal law addresses graffiti under the criminal

         13  mischief statute. There is no provision right now

         14  for that to be a felony. It's always a misdemeanor.

         15                 What we normally will do is we'll

         16  charge criminal mischief, then charge making

         17  graffiti as well, so that we have, if the person did

         18  cause over $250 worth of damage, we will charge a

         19  felony, so we'll charge him 145-05 and 145-60. But

         20  it's penal law, State Penal Law that needs to be

         21  changed.

         22                 CHAIRPERSON VALLONE: Marty, since

         23  you're moving on to Albany, we'll save you the

         24  trouble of having a resolution passed and telling

         25  you about it.
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          2                 I also agree that it should be a

          3  felony, so when you get up there --

          4                 COUNCIL MEMBER GOLDEN: Thank you.

          5                 CHAIRPERSON VALLONE: We can short

          6  circuit the whole process, okay?

          7                 COUNCIL MEMBER GOLDEN: Thank you,

          8  sir.

          9                 Criminal mischief, what about moving

         10  that up in a class?

         11                 LIEUTENANT MONAR: Well, there is

         12  already a class. You have 14500 A mis, 14505 is an E

         13  felony and all you have to do is intentionally

         14  damage property that's valued at more than $250. You

         15  get a--

         16                 COUNCIL MEMBER GOLDEN: We never get a

         17  conviction on that though?

         18                 LIEUTENANT MONAR: No, we do all the

         19  time.

         20                 COUNCIL MEMBER GOLDEN: On the E

         21  felony? A misdemeanor, it gets dropped to an A mis

         22  probably, right?

         23                 LIEUTENANT MONAR: I have well over 50

         24  this year.

         25                 COUNCIL MEMBER GOLDEN: On conviction?
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          2                 LIEUTENANT MONAR: We're not talking

          3  about someone first offense that commits $250 worth

          4  of violation and gets a felony, that's impossible.

          5                 The criminal mistatutes are there,

          6  but they added making graffiti to the criminal

          7  mischief statute. There was no provision for making

          8  graffiti to be a felony, it's always a misdemeanor.

          9                 COUNCIL MEMBER GOLDEN: What happened

         10  to that case we were working on, with the District

         11  Attorney will be working on a case in Brooklyn that

         12  you had locked up those series of graffiti vandals

         13  and they were responsible for tens of thousands of

         14  dollars they put out.

         15                 LIEUTENANT MONAR: They pled out. They

         16  pled out.

         17                 COUNCIL MEMBER GOLDEN: They pled out?

         18                 LIEUTENANT MONAR: They plead out to

         19  the felony.

         20                 COUNCIL MEMBER GOLDEN: I just want to

         21  emphasize again, that was brought up by my

         22  colleague, something that we should definitely look

         23  at is a more than 30 days graffiti on any building,

         24  any wall, any gate, that the obligation of the owner

         25  of the building of the property to remove that
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          2  graffiti, and at that point the owners of these

          3  properties would take it more serious.

          4                 See, there are different communities.

          5  In Bay Ridge we take graffiti very serious, like

          6  homicide. I mean, they go crazy when they see

          7  graffiti, and we see graffiti on the rise. I mean,

          8  people are out there, our community activists are

          9  out there removing the paint and bringing in the

         10  community service programs and I mean they are

         11  vigilant on it.

         12                 There are other communities that

         13  don't have those groups that are that vigilant and

         14  they got these owners that don't care. They open up

         15  a business in the middle of their community, they

         16  live in Long Island, they suck the money out of a

         17  community and they don't care what their property

         18  looks like, and unfortunately that's the type of

         19  store owner that impacts on a community because you

         20  don't want to go down to Uttrecht Avenue on some

         21  stores, and I can understand Simcha being very

         22  upset, my colleague. There are some stores there and

         23  there are some stores in the Uttrecht Avenue in the

         24  68 and 62 Precincts, the same. They just don't care.

         25  So, if you get people like that that just don't
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          2  care, we have to pass legislation that does make

          3  them care, and then eventually we'll really get a

          4  handle on it.

          5                 I do believe it's beyond quality of

          6  life, I believe it impacts the communities far more

          7  than people believe and we have to address it

          8  correctly, and I believe every one of you are doing

          9  a yeoman's job.

         10                 I have worked with each one of you on

         11  this issue and every one of you have been up front

         12  and have been out there on the battle lines working

         13  to decrease this quality of life issue. And I thank

         14  you for that.

         15                 Thank you.

         16                 CHAIRPERSON VALLONE: Ms. Toole, from

         17  Consumer Affairs, I know you need to leave, and I

         18  know the Consumer Affairs questions are finished.

         19  Thank you for coming down and testifying.

         20                 ASSISTANT COMMISSIONER TOOLE: Thank

         21  you. We appreciate your work.

         22                 CHAIRPERSON VALLONE: Chief, if you

         23  could, because there were some people that were not

         24  here when you did the demonstration before, the

         25  piece of glass, especially Council Member Brewer?
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          2                 CHIEF SCAGNELLI: Sure.

          3                 CHAIRPERSON VALLONE: Can you hold

          4  that up one more time?

          5                 It happened to your office, Gale?

          6                 COUNCIL MEMBER BREWER: It was all

          7  over our office.

          8                 CHIEF SCAGNELLI: Here. And if the

          9  chemical is still on it, you can get a chemical

         10  reaction. It's a health issue.

         11                 CHAIRPERSON VALLONE: How long would

         12  that take to do?

         13                 LIEUTENANT MONAR: It took me about

         14  three minutes and we had to do it in the hallway at

         15  the office because it was raining out, and I was

         16  physically ill after it. The smell of that stuff

         17  made me physically ill.

         18                 CHAIRPERSON VALLONE: We have a few

         19  more Council members with questions. Let me just

         20  quickly say, though, back to the topics of the civil

         21  lawsuits. I know personally that they've been very

         22  effective in DWI's and anti-prostitution arrests. I

         23  shouldn't say personally, because I'm a defense

         24  attorney, I used to be, and the civil suits are

         25  immense use in that regard, and we talked about the
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          2  graffiti tags before, there's a whole different

          3  level of proof in the civil cases. The lawyers know

          4  it, preponderance of evidence, not guilty beyond a

          5  reasonable doubt. So we're going to do everything we

          6  can after this hearing to work with you to try to

          7  increase the amount of civil suits that we do

          8  regarding graffiti, and if there's something we need

          9  to do with a law resolution, we'll do that.

         10                 The other quick question I have,

         11  before I had to step out for a second and I turned

         12  it over to Phil Reed. We discussed recidivism.

         13  There's also studies out there that show that

         14  graffiti is what's called a gateway crime, that

         15  people start out with graffiti and they move on;

         16  what's your experience in that area?

         17                 LIEUTENANT MONAR: I whole-heartedly

         18  believe that. I believe that once you're in the

         19  subculture, you start to do graffiti, within the

         20  subculture you're not supposed to buy paint, you're

         21  supposed to steal it, they call it racking paint, so

         22  you get involved in stealing, then you're going to

         23  go into a store and you're going to steal paint, and

         24  steal clothing. They get into graffiti-related

         25  assaults because who went over somebody else's tag.
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          2  We've actually had graffiti-related homicides

          3  through history, nothing being recent, but it

          4  happened.

          5                 So, I believe wholeheartedly,

          6  although there are those that will say it's a lot of

          7  bull, that it doesn't happen, I call graffiti an

          8  entry level crime. I call it an entry level crime.

          9  You get started, and once you get hung up in that

         10  subculture -- back in '95 we had a graffiti crew up

         11  in the Bronx that was responsible for quite a number

         12  of assaults and robberies, because they were, of

         13  course, drug addicted and the whole routine.

         14                 CHAIRPERSON VALLONE: And I would

         15  agree with that, Council Member Sanders.

         16                 COUNCIL MEMBER SANDERS: Thank you

         17  very much, Chair Vallone and Chair Reed, for a very

         18  interesting, and I trust that I will have my fingers

         19  at the end of this, otherwise I've given much to the

         20  City.

         21                 CHIEF SCAGNELLI: You're okay, because

         22  the Lieutenant personally washed that.

         23                 COUNCIL MEMBER SANDERS: Personally

         24  washed it, I have his word. But then, again, I have

         25  never had the pleasure of meeting the brooding force
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          2  was it, or the big brother force?

          3                 LIEUTENANT MONAR: The boogie man.

          4                 COUNCIL MEMBER SANDERS: Well, I've

          5  met him often, and it didn't seem like it, but what

          6  do I know, I was younger.

          7                 I think that we really need to think

          8  about restorative justice. I'm more interested, I

          9  must admit, in having a person go out there and

         10  clean ten times the amount that they have done, 100

         11  times if need be, because a fine won't do anything

         12  to a movie director's son or some variation of that.

         13  He'll think of it as part of his allowance or part

         14  of what he wants to spend daddy's money on or some

         15  foolishness. So, you know, a fine won't do something

         16  like that, but having to go into all kinds of great

         17  neighborhoods in New York City and removing, just

         18  hours after hours after hours of moving stuff; can

         19  we remove that stuff?

         20                 LIEUTENANT MONAR: No, that's

         21  destroyed. That's destroyed forever. That's why this

         22  is much, much worse than paint.

         23                 COUNCIL MEMBER SANDERS: Well, I don't

         24  know what you can do there, but we should have a

         25  much brighter and better City by the enforced
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          2  voluntary labor of these good people.

          3                 If they want to do damage to New York

          4  City, then they should at a minimum be able to

          5  restore ten times the amount back, and after awhile

          6  maybe they will either see the beauty of just

          7  leaving New York City alone, or why don't they just

          8  go out there and fix stuff by itself.

          9                 So, I'm interested in restorative

         10  justice, but I'm also worried about impersonations.

         11                 Now, if I didn't like someone --

         12  imagine, were it possible, I did not like Council

         13  Member Felder, and imagine for a moment that I knew

         14  his tag, I might get out there and do all kinds of

         15  weird stuff, as you were describing and put his name

         16  all over the place. That means you guys may come and

         17  roust (sic) the Council member, and I get two birds

         18  with one stone.

         19                 We should to after the kingpins of

         20  this crime, I agree. Kingpins, felony of one type or

         21  another, you're shown, you've done $100,000 worth of

         22  damage, you've shown that you really want to do some

         23  damage, restorative justice is not so much for you,

         24  my friend. You need to go and have time to

         25  contemplate your misdeeds.
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          2                 But these other guys, we need to

          3  really work on restorative damage and watch out for

          4  impersonators, because I might be able to get his

          5  tag because I don't believe he can do it well, and

          6  I'm very poor at it.

          7                 CHIEF SCAGNELLI: I certainly agree

          8  with restorative justice, and I asked Steve now,

          9  because I thought I knew the answer, and I guess I

         10  did, he said it's absolutely unheard of in the

         11  culture to forge someone else's tag.

         12                 LIEUTENANT MONAR: What you're doing

         13  in the culture, if I can address both? The Transit

         14  Authority has a wonderful restorative justice

         15  program. They not only, it's not just about fines,

         16  it's restitution and community service. The only

         17  time that they would even not ask for restitution is

         18  if the person is indigent, then they want more

         19  community service, but the program works. They're in

         20  the process, because it's a contract with a justice

         21  company, the contract is up and they're in the

         22  process of picking a new company, or maybe staying

         23  with the old, I don't know, but it works. It really

         24  does.

         25                 With regard to going around, doing
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          2  his tag. If you were to do that, what you are doing

          3  in the subculture -- they don't care about us. We

          4  are excluded. They only care about themselves within

          5  the subculture. If you were to go out and do

          6  Councilman Felder's tag over the City, you are

          7  giving him more, and to use their jargon "ups." So,

          8  in other words, you wasted your time by going out

          9  and putting him up more than you. So now people are

         10  going to say, hey, he's got more ups. He's a bigger

         11  guy in the subculture. So, we find it to be almost

         12  unheard of where someone goes out --

         13                 You may, on the other end of the

         14  spectrum, you're going to go out graffiti'g tonight

         15  and he can't make it. He would say, come on, go with

         16  me.  I can't go I gotta stay home and do whatever,

         17  put me up.

         18                 When you put up his tag you're going

         19  to do yours in your style and you're going to do his

         20  in your style, because they want the people in the

         21  subculture to know, well, you were out there last

         22  night doing your graffiti and he couldn't make it,

         23  so you put him up. That shows that you're friends.

         24  And people will say, oh, you know, so and so and so

         25  and so were out last night. No, no, it was only
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          2  Sanders. You know, Felder couldn't make it, you

          3  know, Sanders put him up.

          4                 CHAIRPERSON REED: Thank you.

          5                 Council Member Felder, do you have

          6  additional questions after all of that?

          7                 COUNCIL MEMBER FELDER: Now I

          8  certainly have questions. For my colleague,

          9  Councilman Sanders, I want to know why you chose me

         10  as an example? We'll get to that.

         11                 And secondly, I want to thank you for

         12  putting me up as often as you can. I appreciate it.

         13  I just have one last question that I forgot to ask

         14  earlier, about the graffiti, in terms of

         15  anti-Semitic or racist graffiti, particularly,

         16  again, in my neighborhood over the last two years

         17  I've seen an increase in swastika graffiti. In terms

         18  of punishment, is there an additional penalty?

         19                 I mean, for example my father's

         20  synagogue, just to make the point, on my father's

         21  synagogue, which is a two-family home, I think that

         22  it's there for 25 years, is a swastika on the side

         23  of the house and synagogue, that my father did not

         24  let me remove, that's still there. I mean, you see

         25  the shade of it over the years, that somebody
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          2  painted, and it's there because my father wanted it

          3  to stay there.

          4                 LIEUTENANT MONAR: Well, if you pass

          5  that bill, we're going to make your father remove

          6  it.

          7                 COUNCIL MEMBER FELDER: Right. That's

          8  right. But I want to know that in terms of the

          9  penalty, if somebody does something like that,

         10  whether it's racist or anti-Setimic graffiti, is

         11  there additional penalty for that?

         12                 CHIEF SCAGNELLI: Yes. When crimes

         13  fall under the hate crimes, we have a hate crimes

         14  unit of very hand-picked detectives and there are

         15  additional charges when it's a hate crime. It

         16  elevates everything. Yes, it does.

         17                 COUNCIL MEMBER FELDER: In the last

         18  year there have been three specific incidents, I

         19  think in the last year and a half in my district of

         20  that nature, so that's very, very important.

         21                 Thank you.

         22                 CHIEF SCAGNELLI: You're welcome.

         23                 CHAIRPERSON REED: Thank you, Council

         24  member.

         25                 Council Member Brewer, who is the
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          2  author of at least one of these pieces of

          3  legislation, right?

          4                 COUNCIL MEMBER BREWER: Yes, etching

          5  acid. And I want to thank Gene Castner, officer at

          6  the 24. He is an amazing officer. In our district on

          7  86th and Broadway, Jonathan knows well, we have our

          8  district office. Very large windows. And when we

          9  moved in January there was this substance all over

         10  the windows and graffiti, and I must admit I did not

         11  know what etching acids was. So, I did what people

         12  would do, is to call a company and say would you

         13  come.

         14                 We tried the usual soap, water,

         15  sponge, Brillo - didn't work. And so we called a

         16  company, and it was an interesting process, because

         17  the company said, I think there were several, that

         18  they could come and give an estimate, which would be

         19  in the hundreds, but they probably couldn't take it

         20  off.

         21                 CHAIRPERSON REED: Excuse me, Council

         22  Member Brewer. You called the company of the etching

         23  --

         24                 COUNCIL MEMBER BREWER: The company

         25  that removes graffiti.
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          2                 CHAIRPERSON REED: Oh.

          3                 COUNCIL MEMBER BREWER: And the

          4  company that removes graffiti, there were several,

          5  and they said that they could come and take a look

          6  but we would have to pay an estimate up front in the

          7  hundreds, and that they could not guarantee that

          8  they would be able to get it off. I think it was

          9  around six or 800 dollars.

         10                 So, I thought six or 800 dollars and

         11  there's no result, maybe this isn't a good idea.

         12                 CHIEF SCAGNELLI: And they wouldn't

         13  get it off, by the way.

         14                 COUNCIL MEMBER BREWER: What?

         15                 CHIEF SCAGNELLI: They wouldn't get it

         16  off.

         17                 COUNCIL MEMBER BREWER: So then we

         18  talked to the owner, and we happen to have a

         19  terrific owner, and at his expense, $1,600, he

         20  replaced the window. That is a very large amount of

         21  money for a small business. And that's when we

         22  introduced this bill, and we can -- I see the

         23  challenge now, the graffiti, as you suggest, on many

         24  elevators going into the Transit, into the MTA, et

         25  cetera. And when Officer Castner got involved, he
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          2  did apprehend the person and I believe, I don't know

          3  the outcome, but I know he was arrested. And he had

          4  put acid, etching acid all over in that particular

          5  neighborhood, of 86th and Broadway. So, I am very

          6  familiar with the problem, and I know that the

          7  company would not have gotten it off, and I did

          8  think it was a waste of our money to be able to

          9  invite them to try to take it off.

         10                 But I could see that from any small

         11  business perspective, a hit of $1,600 is huge and

         12  you don't know if it's going to be a reoccurring

         13  expense.

         14                 So, I thank you for your support of

         15  this bill, and I certainly know the problem, and I

         16  want to congratulate the officer, you know, a

         17  million times over.

         18                 CHIEF SCAGNELLI: I'd love to get his

         19  name later. I'll personally call and congratulate

         20  him.

         21                 COUNCIL MEMBER BREWER: Thank you.

         22                 CHIEF SCAGNELLI: Thank you.

         23                 CHAIRPERSON REED: Thank you very

         24  much.

         25                 I think we've talked through this,
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          2  and I'm sure we're going to be calling this question

          3  up at the next hearing or fairly soon. Thank you all

          4  very much for participating today.

          5                 CHIEF SCAGNELLI: Thank you.

          6                 CHAIRPERSON VALLONE: We do have one

          7  more, testimony from one more witness.

          8                 CHAIRPERSON REED: Robert Hills, of

          9  the National Council to Prevent Delinquency.

         10                 We're still in session. Thank you

         11  very much. Thank you. Could you take the comments

         12  outside? Thank you very much for coming.

         13                 I'm sorry, Mr. Hills. You've been

         14  very patient. Please identify yourself for the

         15  record. When you push that button the light has to

         16  be off.

         17                 MR. HILLS: Thank you. Chairman Reed

         18  and Chairman Vallone, and members of both

         19  Committees, my name is Bob Hills, and I head the

         20  NCPD Anti-Graffiti Project. We're an industry-funded

         21  non-profit effort to help communities build and

         22  strengthen comprehensive anti-graffiti --

         23                 CHAIRPERSON REED: Pull the microphone

         24  just a little closer.

         25                 MR. HILLS: Sure. Thank you.
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          2                 I want to thank you for inviting us

          3  to comment on this bill today. I'm going to take

          4  these out of order. Our first comments would be on

          5  286, which increases penalties for second and

          6  subsequent graffiti offenses and for retail sales

          7  and display violations. We endorse the strong

          8  penalties for defacing property, but we would

          9  suggest that the current language of subdivision C

         10  is somewhat, I guess unfair I would say to

         11  retailers, but I think also to the public interest.

         12  Because in practice it allows a minor to make

         13  unlimited attempts to buy these products until he

         14  finds someone who will sell to him. There's no

         15  penalty for these attempts and while there are

         16  penalties for selling, there are no penalties for

         17  the minor buying.

         18                 If your committees are going to

         19  strengthen the retail penalties, we would suggest

         20  that subdivision C be amended with the addition of

         21  the words "and no person under the age of 18 shall

         22  purchase or attempt to purchase such products."

         23                 I think when the price of a can of

         24  spray paint or a wide-tipped marker gets to be $500,

         25  you're going to have a lot fewer problems with
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          2  juvenile attempts to purchase.

          3                 On 277, related to posting of

          4  in-store signs, we strongly endorse this concept.

          5  It's an important part of our responsible retailing

          6  program, and we believe it serves as an educational

          7  device for customers and a compliance aid for

          8  employees.

          9                 I provided you with samples of

         10  in-store signs and training materials from one of

         11  our responsible retailing partner cities. If you

         12  flip those open, you'll see the signage.

         13                 We have two suggestions on this

         14  proposal. First, as you're asking the Department of

         15  Consumer Affairs to boil down five subdivisions of

         16  the Administrative Code into one sign, we would

         17  recommend that the requirement be changed to two

         18  signs. One would state the law and penalties

         19  regarding vandalism and be posted at the product

         20  display. The other would state the ban on sale to

         21  minors to be posted at the cash register or in a

         22  check-out area.

         23                 Second, if you accept this

         24  recommendation, we would suggest that any store that

         25  programs its checkout computers to stop upon reading
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          2  the universal product code for any restricted item,

          3  and to prompt the clerk to check for ID, be exempt

          4  from the no sale to minor sign requirement.

          5                 CHAIRPERSON REED: Sir, we're all

          6  trying to look through your packet. The last point

          7  was -- what did you say?

          8                 MR. HILLS: Oh. All these products

          9  carry a UPC, Universal Product Code. If a store

         10  programs its computer to stop, when that code comes

         11  across the scanner and to check for ID, then we

         12  would suggest that you make that an exempt situation

         13  from the signage requirement.

         14                 Now, this is not only good compliance

         15  practice, but it's more practical with a lot of the

         16  contemporary outlets that you have now.

         17                 The home centers, the discount

         18  stores, any of the large stores, have multiple

         19  checkout islands, and many of these are only waist

         20  high. There's no place to put a sign.

         21                 But if you can get -- you get better

         22  training, because the computer is trained, you don't

         23  have to worry about the clerk forgetting.

         24                 And, finally, on 243, the regulation

         25  on etching acid, we suggest that if it's going to be
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          2  the policy of the City to add an item each time it

          3  gets into the tagger's arsenal, that you might want

          4  to take a look at the facsimile display approach

          5  that was established in the eighties and look at

          6  some of the more contemporary approaches to retail

          7  control.

          8                 In the back of the left side of that

          9  folder, there's a very good piece on essential

         10  provisions for graffiti ordinances, and it contains

         11  language on page three that I think would be worth

         12  looking at.

         13                 CHAIRPERSON REED: Can I stop you for

         14  a minute?

         15                 MR. HILLS: Yes.

         16                 CHAIRPERSON REED: The question came

         17  up, and I'm looking through your stuff here, you're

         18  from Maryland, most of the stuff that you've given

         19  us is from Dade County in Florida, and our staff

         20  attorney to Consumer Affairs is asking me, is there

         21  any municipalities where there is this kind of

         22  legislation, and/or where you've seen this?

         23                 MR. HILLS: The Dade County example,

         24  the display and age restrictions are by ordinance.

         25  We also have programs by ordinance in Milwaukee
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          2  Wisconsin and in a number of other cities. We have a

          3  voluntary program in Suffolk County, but we work

          4  with the cities on supply side controls, providing

          5  the materials and the training, and also to

          6  follow-up. We're in every city. We're back in

          7  Albuquerque, New Mexico right now, which is another

          8  partner city, auditing the retail stores, seeing who

          9  needs resupply signs and things like that.

         10                 It's a dynamic business. I mean,

         11  clerks change, owners change, managers change, and

         12  you have to keep reminding people that this is the

         13  law. It's the same as if you put up a speed limit

         14  sign, and didn't stop anybody for three or four

         15  years, pretty soon they wouldn't look at it.

         16                 So, we try to be back in there on

         17  that component of the program.

         18                 I did want to mention to you that on

         19  some of the things that have come up today, the

         20  staff would like to check our website, there are

         21  some very good examples of ordinances that deal with

         22  the property access issue, and the parental

         23  liability victim restitution, cumulative

         24  prosecution. A lot of the items that you've

         25  discussed today are there, and our research staff is
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          2  also available to your Committee staff on any of

          3  these items. And, again, thanks for asking.

          4                 CHAIRPERSON REED: Thank you. That's

          5  very helpful. And I suspect we will take you up,

          6  particularly with the research staff.

          7                 What is the purpose, and I don't mean

          8  this in any negative way, but what is the purpose of

          9  your organization? Because you seem to be very

         10  focused and knowledgeable about this graffiti piece,

         11  but is that a larger mandate?

         12                 MR. HILLS: The Anti-Graffiti Project

         13  is our largest project.

         14                 Our purpose is to deal with the

         15  issues of illegal or dangerous misuse of consumer

         16  products by young people. That includes everything

         17  from -- we assisted with your box-cutter legislation

         18  back in the nineties, we do a lot of work on

         19  inhalant abuse, and graffiti is, as I said, our

         20  biggest project.

         21                 We have in prior administrations

         22  attempted to assist the Anti-Graffiti Task Forces of

         23  the Mayor, and things of that nature.

         24                 CHAIRPERSON REED: I'm looking at your

         25  card. Education.  What works with these taggers and
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          2  these people who get engaged with this as a

          3  long-term thing. I mean, people get caught and

          4  whatever that happens. The police were saying that

          5  they tend to stop because they're embarrassed, et

          6  cetera, et cetera. Has that been your experience? Or

          7  is there some education that needs to be directed to

          8  them, other than just punitive or making them clean

          9  up? You know, somebody was saying some ratio of ten

         10  to one?

         11                 MR. HILLS: Well, I think that the

         12  education is really going to be the answer to this.

         13  I mean, we heard today, this City has a very active

         14  program, and you have I think a very good police

         15  unit on this. When we refer Police Departments for

         16  training in this area, or when they have questions,

         17  we refer them to your transit division as one of the

         18  sources. So, they get it in regard to what this

         19  problem is. But what we talked about today are

         20  supply side controls on things for which it is very

         21  difficult to control supply, we're dealing with one

         22  narrow area, which is the retail community, and

         23  we've talked about abatement, which is essentially

         24  cleaning up crime scenes, it's not dealing with the

         25  issue of graffiti vandalism.
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          2                 Our biggest effort this year is to

          3  find partners to develop curriculum materials,

          4  either with schools or with youth groups to catch

          5  the kids at the middle school level when they're

          6  starting to form their peer group relationships,

          7  because as the police witnesses stated, this is a

          8  subculture, and probably 85 percent of the graffiti

          9  in the City of New York is tagger graffiti. You have

         10  maybe ten percent is gangs, maybe five percent are

         11  piecers, or the masterpieces, but what you see on

         12  the windows, talking about the glass etching thing,

         13  for example, are usually tags. The taggers call

         14  those "monuments" because they're very hard to move.

         15  But we feel that if we can deal with them at that

         16  point, and also I mentioned victim restitution and

         17  parental liability. Any place that we have an

         18  opportunity to assist the community in teaching its

         19  children that they are responsible for their

         20  actions, and parents that they're responsible for

         21  their children, we're very happy to do that, and

         22  that seems to be the most effective.

         23                 If we can cut off the stream of kids

         24  into the tagger subculture, that's the way that we

         25  will short and long-term reduce graffiti.
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          2                 CHAIRPERSON REED: Thank you. I do

          3  think your testimony is very valuable to this.

          4  Certainly this information that you've given us is a

          5  very real question, and in almost everybody's

          6  neighborhood, I know this has given me a lot to

          7  think about. And even directing the schools to try

          8  to take a look at identifying this or being aware.

          9                 I think also if we get schools to let

         10  people know that there are these fines, that could

         11  be helpful. But I appreciate very much your coming

         12  today.

         13                 MR. HILLS: Thank you. And I think on

         14  some of the very simple things, if Consumer Affairs

         15  wants to talk to us about the signage question,

         16  we'll be happy to help them with that.

         17                 CHAIRPERSON REED: Thank you very

         18  much.

         19                 MR. HILLS: Thank you.

         20                 CHAIRPERSON VALLONE: Thank you.

         21                 CHAIRPERSON REED: Council Member

         22  Vallone has said that since he sees nobody else in

         23  the room practically, the meeting is adjourned.

         24                 (Hearing concluded at 11:58 a.m.)
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          5     STATE OF NEW YORK   )

          6     COUNTY OF NEW YORK  )

          7

          8

          9                 I, CINDY MILLELOT, a Certified

         10  Shorthand Reporter and Notary Public in and for the

         11  State of New York, do hereby certify that the

         12  foregoing is a true and accurate transcript of the

         13  within proceeding.
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         15  related to any of the parties to this action by

         16  blood or marriage, and that I am in no way

         17  interested in the outcome of this matter.
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